



EXCERPT FROM THE MINUTES OF THE CY 2023 –29th REGULAR SESSION OF THE HONORABLE SANGGUNIANG BAYAN TIGBAUAN, ILOILO HELD AT THE S.B. SESSION HALL, TIGBAUAN MUNICIPAL BUILDING ON JULY 19, 2023 AT 9:10 O'CLOCK IN THE MORNING

PRESENT:

HON. ADRIAN S. CAMPOSAGRADO - Acting Vice Mayor& Temp. Pres. Officer HON. JERRY T. TUARES - SB Member& Temp. Pres. Officer

HON. NERI T. CAMIÑA - SB Member
HON. REYNALDO E. TUMABOTABO - SB Member
HON. JULIUS T. LEDESMA - SB Member
HON. NORBERTO T. TURALBA - SB Member
HON. JOEL L. SAYSON - SB Member
HON. ANA ROWENA A. PERERA - SB Member

HON. MARIBETH L. TUPINO - Liga President
HON. DYOSSA MARIE TERUÑEZ - SKMF President

OFFICIAL TRAVEL:

HON. LUGEN T. ORTILANO, - Vice Mayor

(To attend meeting w/ Jiangsu Prov'l. Dept.of Agriculture&Rural Affairs Officials, &visit Onion Breeding Base/Processing Factory/Traders/Universities or Research Institutions of Jiangsu, Xushou& Lianyungang, located in Shanghai, Nanjing, Xushou& Lianyungang, China from July 18-23, 2023)

Municipal Ordinance No. 2023-009

AN ORDINANCE OPERATIONALIZING THE COMMUNITY FISH LANDING CENTER IN THE MUNICIPALITY OF TIGBAUAN, ILOILO, PROVIDING GUIDELINES, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE PROPER AND EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION AND MANAGEMENT, IMPOSING REGULATORY FEES AND CHARGES, AND PROVIDING PENALTIES IN VIOLATION THEREOF

Introduced by: Administration Measure

Author: HON. NORBERTO T. TURALBA (Movant)

Sponsored by: COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE AND AQUATIC RESOURCES

Chairman: Hon. Norberto T. Turalba Vice Chairman: Hon. Neri T. Camiña

Members: Hon. Jerry T. Tuares, Hon. Maribeth L. Tupino and

Hon. Ana Rowena A. Perera

Seconded by: Hon. Neri T. Camiña, Hon. Reynaldo E. Tumabotabo, Hon. Julius T. Ledesma, Hon. Joel

Sayson, Hon. Ana Rowena A. Perera, Hon. Maribeth L. Tupino and Hon. Dyossa Marie

Teruñez

WHEREAS, the Local Government Unit of Tigbauan in coordination with the Bureau of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources (BFAR), has established a Community Fish Landing Center (CFLC) in Barangay Tan Pael, Tigbauan, Iloilo;

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Bureau of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources (BFAR), the Philippine Fisheries Development Authority (PFDA) and the Municipality of Tigbauan, the LGU will "Directly manage the CFLC in

partnership with Local Organized Fisherfolk Association at the initial stage of its operation and eventually turn-over the operation and management to the association when already capable of independently managing the CFLC";

WHEREAS, Section 149 of the Local Government Code of 1999 authorizes the local government units to enter into joint venture and such other cooperative arrangements with people's and non-government organizations to engage in delivery of certain basic services, capability-building and livelihood projects and to develop local enterprises designed to improve productivity and income, diversity agriculture, spur rural industrialization, promote ecological balance, and enhance the economic and social well-being of the people;

WHEREAS, in accordance with the objectives of the projects, the Municipality of Tigbauan aims to establish the following:

- 1. Trading hub for fresh catch and processed products;
- 2. Post-harvest handling and processing center;
- 3. Training center for skills development, including data collection for fisheries management;
- 4. Information hub for relevant services (such as registration and licensing of fishers, boat and gear) and hazard warnings;
- 5. Hub for community meeting and events.

THEREFORE, in view of the foregoing, be it ORDAINED by the Sangguniang Bayan of Tigbauan, Iloilo in a session assembled that:

CHAPTER I

GENERAL PROVISION

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.— This Ordinance shall be known as the Community Fish Landing Center Ordinance in the Municipality of Tigbauan.

SECTION 2. COVERAGE. –This Ordinance shall govern merchants, traders, CFLC personnel, fish handlers, the general public and all municipal fishing vessels duly licensed to operate and registered with Local Government Unit of Tigbauan with gears prescribed under RA 8550 as amended by RA 10654 (3 gross tonnage and below using passive fishing gears). Commercial fishing shall be allowed only to deliver their fish catch at CFLC.

SECTION 3. GENERAL PROVISION.

- 1. The Community fish Landing Center shall consist of a building (ice storage), weights and measures and other facilities capable of handling varieties of fish landed and other marine products, maintaining their quality and freshness.
- 2. There should be collected regulatory fees and charge on fishes, commodities, or services specified in this ordinance.
- 3. All fees and charges shall be issued cash ticket stubs or corresponding forms of receipts.

SECTION 4. DEFINITION OF TERMS – The following terms as used in this ordinance shall mean:

- 1. CFLC Community Fish Landing Center
- 2. ACCREDITATION a process of validation in which certification of competency, authority or credibility is presented. The accreditation shall serve as permit which will entitle the applicant to operate or engage in business activity in the CFLC.
- 3. ASSOCIATION refers to more than 15 persons, who assembled themselves for their mutual benefits and protection and for other legitimate purposes.

- 4. BERTHING FEE –the amount charged to any vessel that stays or berths in the area of jurisdiction of the CFLC. The fee is collected from the boat owner on a per docking basis at a rate depending on the Gross Tonnage (GT) of the fishing vessel.
- 5. CONSIGNATION a common term used by the fishermen and fishpond operator which refer to particular place in the fish port wherein the buying and selling of marine products and harvest shall take place.
- 6. FISH includes all fish and other aquatic species such as crustaceans (crabs, prawns, shrimps, and lobsters), mollusks (squid, cuttlefish, octopus, clams, mussels, scallops, oysters, snails and gastropods.)
- 7. FISH BROKER one who is engaged in fish trading activities in the market but acting as the middleman between the fish supplier and the buyer.
- 8. FISH HANDLERS fishers, landing site workers, fish processors and fish vendors.
- 9. Fish Landing Center a building with accessory facilities and equipment where fishing vessels can upload aquatic/marine products/ and wherein any fish trading can be conducted by legitimate fish traders/dealers of brokers.
- 10. FISHERFOLK ORGANIZATION an organized group, association, federation, alliance, or an institution of fisherfolk which is has at least fifteen (15) members, a set of officers, a constitution and by-laws, an organizational structure and a program of action.
- 11. FISH PORT also used in this Ordinance as Community Fish Landing Center or CFLC
- 12. FISHERY PRODUCTS include not only finfish but also mollusks, crustaceans, echinoderms, marine mammals, and all other species of aquatic flora and fauna and all other products of aquatic living resources in any form.
- 13. FISH SUPPLIER owner or operator of any commercial fishing boat, fish pen or any person who sells fish through the market.
- 14. FISH TUB container used to display fish at the market hall, made of suitable material which contain a minimum of kilograms.
- 15. FISHING VESSEL includes yacht, boats (motorized or non-motorized) an watercraft used in capable of being used as means for catching fish and/or transporting aquatic resources and marine products.
- 16. ICE CONVEYANCE FEE fee is collected from any person selling ice inside the CFLC premises.
- 17. ICE STORAGE a formal document that identifies the lessor, lessee, and the leased asset or property; states lease terms and fee (rent) and detailed terms and conditions of the lease agreement.
- 18. LANDING docking at the premises of the Community Fish Landing Center and on the beaches within the Municipality.
- 19. LOADING FEE the fee collected from the fish producer/supplier who unload fish at the CFLC for auction or sale on a per kilogram basis.
- 20. MARKET FEE the fee collected from the fish broker/fish producer/supplier who trades fish at the Community Fish Landing Center premises.

- 21. MUNICIPAL FISHING VESSEL motorized or non-motorized vessel used for fishing and transport of fish, aquatic resources and other marine products with the capacity of less than 3 gross tons operating within or outside the municipal waters.
- 22. SPACE RENTALS refers to the amount of rentals provided in this ordinance.
- 23. STAKEHOLDERS refer to the group that is or might be affected by the CFLC's activities, which include fisherfolks, fish vendors, fish brokers, small commercial fishing vessel, fishpond operators, etc.
- 24. TRANSSHIPMENT FEE the fee collected per kilogram from the fish producer /supplier who transport fish outside the Community Fish Landing Center and/or to the trader buying fish directly from the fish producer to be transported outside the locality.

SECTION 5. DECLARATION OF POLICY

It is hereby declared the policy of the Municipality of Tigbauan, and within its territorial jurisdiction, that the venue for business opportunities particularly fish landing and fish trading is the Community Fish Landing Center and enjoining all local fishermen, fish dealers and fishery operators to use the Community Fish Landing Center (CFLC).

SECTION 6. SHARE FROM PROCEEDS/INCOME. – Upon the operation of the CFLC under the LGU, all fees and charges imposed/collected shall accrue and be kept in a special fund for the purpose; such as payment of electric bill, operation maintenance and other expenses.

In case if the CFLC is turned – over to fisherfolk's association, the LGU will collect 10% from proceeds or receipts to cover maintenance expenses.

SECTION 7. FISH CATCH MONITORING. – The Office of the Municipal Agriculture is mandated to come up with mechanisms in ensuring that fish catch is being monitored within the territorial jurisdiction of the Municipality; the said office may employ assistance of the fisherfolk association and Barangay Agriculture Worker assigned.

CHAPTER II

IMPOSITION OF FEES

The following shall be the fees and charges that will be imposed in availing the services of the Tigbauan CFLC.

- **A. BERTHING/DOCKING FEE. –** The owner of vessel docking at the Tigbauan Community Fish Landing Center shall pay the following berthing fees to the designated collector assigned at the CFLC:
- i. Municipal Fishing Vessel Php 10.00/docking/hour
- ii. Other watercraftsPhp 10.00/docking
- iii. Vessel owned and operated by the National, Provincial, Municipal, and Barangay government are exempted from these impositions.
- iv. Berthing in excess of 1 day shall be charged an additional rate of P10.00 per day.
- **B. MARKET FEE.** All fish brokers or suppliers who display fish for sale inside or within the Tigbauan Community Fish Landing Center premises shall pay a market fee of twenty Php 20.00/banyera or strainer intended for local consumption.

- **C. ENTRANCE FEE**. All vehicles entering CFLC area shall pay the following fees:

- **D. TRANSHIPMENT FEE.** All fish producers or suppliers who transport fish outside the Tigbauan CFLC and traders buying fish direct from the fish producers or suppliers to be transported outside the locality shall pay a transhipment fee of Php 20.00/banyera or strainer and fifty (50) centavos per kilogram of quality fish.
- **E. WATER FEE.** Any person fetching water from any faucet or water from any water outlet inside the Tigbauan CFLC premises shall pay the following rate:
- **F. ACCREDITATION FEE.** No person may transact business inside the CFLC with the duly accredited brokers, vendors, and clients without first paying an Annual Accreditation Fee of Php 300.00 to the Municipal Treasurer; and having a Certificate of Accreditation, issued/signed by the Mayor as Chairman of the CFLC Management Board
- **G. SPACE/STALL RENTALS.** –Any qualified person as may be determined by the CFLC Management Board may be allowed to rent stalls or spaces inside the CFLC premises, provided that the lessee shall follow the terms and conditions of the CFLC, to include but not limited to Good Hygenic Practices (GHP). The following rates shall be imposed.
 - i. First floor Php 5.00 per sq. meter/day or a fraction thereof; and
 - ii. Second Floor Php 500.00/day inclusive of electricity and table and chairs.
 - iii. Php 50.00/sq. m. (area)/stall every month (ex. P50 x 9 sq.m.= P450/month)
- **H. MANNER OF PAYMENT.** Immediately after docking, operators and/or boat owner shall pay the required berthing fee. No fishing vessel/watercraft shall be allowed to leave the Tigbauan CFLC without paying the berthing fee and other charges prescribed by the Municipal Government.
 - I. EVIDENCE OF PAYMENT All fees and charges shall be issued ticket stubs or corresponding forms or receipts by the collector assigned/authorized by the Municipal Treasurer and shall accrue to the General Funding of the Municipality.

CHAPTER III

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISION

SECTION 8 – The Municipal Mayor, as the head of the Community Fish Landing Management Board, shall exercise direct supervision, administration and control over the Community Fish Landing Center, the personnel thereof, including those whose duties concern the maintenance, upkeep, peace and order of the CFLC premises in accordance with laws, local ordinances and other rules and/or regulations pertinent thereto.

SECTION 9. COMMUNITY FISH LANDING MANAGEMENT BOARD (CFMB). – There is hereby created a Fish Landing Management Board which shall be composed of 11 members consisting of:

- a. The Local Chief Executive, as Chairman
- b. The Municipal Administrator, as Vice Chairman
- c. The Chairperson of the Committee on Agri-Fisheries of the Sangguniang Bayan
- d. At least three(3) representatives from the fisherfolk sector, which include the president and treasurer of each association that are beneficiaries of the Community Fish Landing Center.

- e. Representative from the Treasurer's Office (1)
- f. Representative from the Accounting's Office (1)
- g. Representative from the Budget's Office (1)
- h. Representative from the Engineering's Office (1)
- i. Representative from the Municipal Social Welfare and Development Office (1)
- j. Representative from the Office of the Municipal Agriculturist (1)

SECTION 10. FUNCTIONS OF THE FISH LANDING MANAGEMENT BOARD. – The CFLMB shall perform the following functions:

- a. Provide the overall policy and strategic direction in implementing the CFLC operation;
- b. Approve short/long range CFLC plans, and personal action;
- c. Recommend to the Municipal Mayor, the approval and revocation of contracts and agreements;
- d. Organize, re-organize and determine the CFLC staffing pattern;
- e. Appoint, dismiss, promote and transfer CFLC personnel; and
- f. Develop Standard Operating System and Procedures for the efficient and effective management and operation of the CFLC.

SECTION 11. FISH LANDING SUPERVISOR (FLS). – The Fish Landing Supervisor shall be the Custodian of the CFLC and shall have immediate administrative supervision and control over all subordinate personnel thereon and shall perform the following:

- 1. Oversee the overall supervision of the CFLC operation;
- 2. Implement and enforce the policies, programs, guidelines, standards, decision, rules and regulations prescribed by the CFLMB;
- 3. Supervise and monitor market operations consisting of fish unloading and buyer/seller operations, as well as the utilization of market facilities and conduct of transshipment activities;
- 4. Enforce existing laws and duly prescribed policies, rules and regulations in the conduct of market operations, particularly with regard to quality assurance, cleanliness and safety in the market area;
- 5. Assess fish unloading and transshipment fees, buyer/seller fees and other market fees and charges (power, electricity, etc.);
- 6. Review and recommend to the CFLMB proposed market contracts and monitor the implementation of duly approved contracts;
- 7. Evaluate and recommend to the CFLMB market clients/participants applying for accreditation;
- 8. Submit to the CFLMB periodic and special reports;
- 9. Handle cash advances for emergency purchases, repairs and other related maintenance and other operating expenses for the CFLC, and
- 10. Perform such other functions and duties that may be assigned to him by the CFLMB.

SECTION 12. FISH LANDING INSPECTOR (FLI).

- The Fish Landing Inspector shall assume the responsibilities of inspecting the sanitary conditions and upkeep of the CFLC, determine whether all sanitary rules and regulations of the fish landing facility are complied with and shall report to the Community Fish Landing Supervisor any deficiencies during inspection;
- 2. Enforce existing laws and duly prescribed policies, rules and regulations in the conduct of the CFLC operations particularly with regard to quality assurance, cleanliness and safety inside the CFLC area; and
- 3. Check and inspect the unloading and loading of fish and fishery products.

SECTION 13. OTHER FISH LANDING PERSONNEL. – Other CFLC Personnel as maybe deemed necessary shall be appointed by the CFLMB, these include;

1. CASHIER

- a. Receive collections from collecting officers and shall issue corresponding official receipts;
- b. Deposit daily collections to the Municipal Treasurer;
- c. Maintain books of accounts for proper recording and documentation of financial transactions; and
- d. Prepare monthly report of collections.

2. BOOKEEPER

- a. Classify and record financial transactions in the book of accounts and summarize results on a daily basis;
- b. Maintain subsidiary ledgers and prepare periodic statement of balances, and check subsidiary ledgers entries against cash disbursements and collections reports.

3. MARKET CHECKER/COLLECTOR

- a. Issue operating stubs/order of payment and collect fees per transaction, prepare remittance slip to summarize issued stubs and cash collections and remit the same to the cashier at the end of the daily shifting schedule; and
- b. Check and record the volume of fish delivered and other statistical data and submit the same to the Community Fish Landing Supervisor (CFLS).

4. UTILITY CLERK

- a. Perform general clerical and janitorial works; and
- b. Maintain the cleanliness of CFLC premises.

5. SECURITY GUARD

a. Provide proper security measures to ensure peace and order at the port and safety of the clients, equipment and facilities within the premises of the complex.

SECTION 14. TERMS OF OFFICE. – The members of the Community Fish Landing Management Board (CFLMB) except the Local Chief Executive and other members holding elective ad/or co-terminus positions shall serve for a fixed term of three (3) years, unless removed from the office by a vote of 2/3 of all the members of the board.

SECTION 15. PRICING. – Wholesale and retail prices of fishery products shall be determined by the sellers/organization, provided it is within the suggested retail price (SRP) wholesale price of the commodity.

SECTION 16. TIME OF OPERATION. – Regular operations shall be from 1:00 o'clock in the morning to 5:00 o'clock in the morning.

CHAPTER IV

SAFETY OF FISHERY PRODUCTS

SECTION 17. All fish and fishery products entering the CFLC should undergo a check on reception, by the Fish Landing Supervisor, to ensure that the same meet the requirement set under RA 10611 (Food Safety Act 2013), RA 10654 (An Act to Prevent, Deter and Eliminate Illegal, Unreported and Unregulated Fishing), and other pertinent rules and regulations.

SECTION 18. Fish and fishery products intended for sale for human consumption should have characteristics (chemical and physical) consistent with fitness for human consumption. Spoiled fish, or fish which are contaminated, shall not be permitted entry to complex.

CHAPTER V

GOOD HYGINE PRACTICE, SANITATION AND WASTE MANAGEMENT

SECTION 19. A high standard of cleanliness is required inside CLC, particularly to fish handlers:

- 1. Persons handling fishery products shall refrain from wearing jewelry and other personal items which may contaminate the fishery products;
- 2. Hand wounds shall be covered by a water proof dressing;
- 3. Smoking, spitting, eating and drinking in areas where fish is handled shall be prohibited:
- 4. No person suffering from, or being a carrier of disease likely to be transmitted through food, shall not be permitted to handle fishery products, or enter any area where fishery products are handled.

SECTION 20. Areas where fish is handled, and equipment such as tables, fish boxes, knives, and other items with which fish comes into contacts, shall be cleaned and sanitized as frequently as necessary during use, at least at the beginning and end of any work period.

SECTION 21. CFLC area for auction/consignation or wholesale markets where fishery products are displayed for sale, must, when they are used for display or storage of fishery products, not to be used for other purposes.

SECTION 22. During landing and unloading, contamination of fishery products must be avoided. It must in particular, be ensured that:

- 1. Fish products unloading and landing operations proceed rapidly;
- 2. Fishery products are placed without unnecessary delay in a protected environment at the temperature required on the basis of the product and, when necessary, in ice in transport, and cold storage; and
- 3. Equipment and handling practices that cause unnecessary damage to the fishery products are not authorized.

SECTION 23. At the end of the business day, owners of the fish stalls/consignation and ice storage stalls, thru its personnel or helper, shall clean their respective area before leaving.

SECTION 24. Periodically or randomly, the Community Fish Landing Inspector shall conduct inspections to ensure that the cleaning and sanitizing measures inside the CFLC facility are properly undertaken.

SECTION 25. Vehicles emitting exhaust fumes which may impair the quality of the fishery products must not be admitted in the vicinity of the CFLC. All parked vehicles must turn-off their engines.

SECTION 26. IMPLEMENTATION OF R.A 9003. – All stallholders, fish brokers and fish vendors are required to follow the provisions of R.A. 9003 (Ecological Solid Waste Management Act of 2000).

SECTION 27. WATER FACILITIES. – Adequate water supply shall be provided in the CFLC area. The entity operating the CFLC shall be responsible for the monthly billing.

SECTION 28. LIGHTING FACILITIES. – The Municipality of Tigbauan, Iloilo shall provide the electrical installation, however, the cost of expenses of the monthly billing shall be the responsibility of the entity operating the CFLC.

SECTION 29. – PROVIDING SECURITY. – The Community Fish Landing Supervisor shall supervise the security personnel detailed or assigned by the Community Fish Landing Management Board to secure the operation and the maintenance of the fish port. If deemed necessary, a policemen or Barangay Tanod shall be detailed at the CFLC and shall perform duties as instructed by the Municipal Mayor.

CHAPTER VI

OTHER RESTRICTIONS

SECTION 30. All owners/operators of fishing vessels that dock in the CFLC shall maintain the cleanliness and seaworthiness of their vessels and avoid all forms of pollution within the CFLC vicinity and its immediate docking areas.

SECTION 31. All forms of vandalism shall be prohibited.

SECTION 32. No endangered marine species/products that are prohibited under existing laws and local ordinances shall be allowed to be traded in the CFLC and its premises.

SECTION 33. Gambling in any form, drinking intoxicating liquor and smoking are strictly prohibited inside the CFLC and its premises.

SECTION 34. Birds and other animals are not allowed inside the CFLC, particularly in the market area.

CHAPTER VII

FUNDING, LEASE AGREEMENT AND PROFIT SHARING ARRANGEMENT

SECTION 35. FUNDING. – The Municipal Government of Tigbauan, Iloilo shall allocate a budget for the initial operation of the CFLC subject to accounting and budgeting rules and regulations.

SECTION 36. LEASE AGREEMENT. – The Municipal Government of Tigbauan, Iloilo shall have the sole authority to administer and supervise the Community Fish Landing Center for the first year its operation and for the second year, it will be turn-over to the Fisherfolk Association. However, in case the Association fails to operate successfully, it is obliged to turn over the operation back to the LGU. The Municipal Government through its Local Chief Executive (LCE) may enter into a Lease Agreement to interested parties.

SECTION 37. FEES AND RENTALS. – The Municipal Government permits the fisherfolk Association/Cooperative/Organization, if deemed proper, to adopt the fees imposed under Chapter II of this Ordinance. The Municipal Government shall impose a **Rental fee of 5% per month payable to the Local Treasury every 30th of the month.**

CHAPTER VIII

PENAL PROVISION

SECTION 38. Penalty – Any violation of the provision of this ordinance shall be fined in the following manner:

a. 1st offense - P 500.00 b. 2nd offense - P1,500.00 c. 3rd offense and succeeding offenses – P2,000.00 and cancellation of accreditation, if the violator is an accredited fish vendor, broker, auctioneer or viajaro.

SECTION 39. Stallholder/s, including their personnel or helpers who do not comply with the provision/s of this Ordinance, and other pertinent laws and orders, shall be ejected from the stall he/she leased upon due notice and process.

SECTION 40. In case of vandalism, the violator shall pay the amount equivalent to the repair of the damaged property or its part.

CHAPTER IX

FINAL PROVISIONS

SECTION. 41. REPEALING CLAUSE. – All Municipal Ordinances, issuances or circulars and memoranda relative hereto which do not conform to the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed or modified accordingly.

SECTION 42. EFFECTIVITY CLAUSE. – This Ordinance shall take effect upon its approval and fifteen (15) days after it had been posted in three conspicuous places of the municipality.

ENACTED. July 19, 2023.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

MARLENE TAYO-NAVA

SB Secretary

ATTESTED:

JERRY T. TUARES

S.B. Member & Temporary Presiding Officer

APPROVED:

ATTY. VIRGILIO T. TERUEL.

Municipal Mayor

(Date signed)

HON. LUGEN T. ORTILANO Municipal Vice Mayor Sangguniang Bayan Members:

HON. JULIUS T. LEDESMA, O.D. HON. NORBETO T. TURALBA HON. JERRY T. TUARES, C.E. HON. ANA ROWENA ARIAS-PERERA, R.N. M.A.N. HON. MARIBETH LEDESMA-TUPINO, LnB President HON. DYOSSA MARIE TERUÑEZ, SKMF President

